
HALFMOON TOWNSHIP OPEN SPACE PRESERVATION BOARD 
REORGANIZATION MEETING – MINUTES 

January 7th, 2009 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
Chair Lee Pressler called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.  Other members present were Bob 
Eberhart, Ben Pisoni, Jerry Brown, Brooks Way and Ron Hoover (arrived at 7:04 p.m.).  Staff 
present was Amy Smith.  There were no residents present.   

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 
      ●  MOTION:  Mr. Pisoni moved to nominate Mr. Pressler as Chairman; Mr. Eberhart 

seconded; Vote 6-0-0;  Motion Carried. 
 
3. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

 
●  MOTION:  Mr. Eberhart moved to nominate Mr. Hoover as Vice-Chairman; Mr. Way 

seconded; Vote 6-0-0; Motion Carried. 
 

4. MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
●  MOTION:  Mr. Eberhart moved to follow the meeting schedule to that is currently set; 

the first & third Wednesdays at 7:00 p.m.;  January 21st, February 4th & 18th, March 4th 
& 18th, April 1st & 15th, May 6th & 20th, June 3rd & 17th, July 1st & 15th, August 5th & 
19th, September 2nd & 16th, October 7th & 21st, November 4th & 18th and December 2nd 
& 16th, 2009; Mr. Hoover seconded; Vote 6-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
5. LAND RATING REVIEWS 

A. FREDA BARTO – 14.26 Acres 
Mr. Pressler stated this property scored 1.14 points with +1 point for any parcel of land, which 
adjoins another parcel of land, preserved in the OSPP.  Mr. Pressler stated that was the only 
extra point he could add.  Mr. Pressler stated this property will score special merits points for 
wellhead, type 2 soils and forests.  Mr. Pressler commented this property will need right-of-way 
clarification.  Mr. Pressler stated he will finish totaling these points and forward for review.   
 
B. JERRY & SHIRLEY BROWN 
Mr. Pressler stated this property consists of 434.8 acres and Mr. Brown is considering 
submitting 313.0 for the open space preservation program.  Mr. Brown stated those figure 
were not correct.  Mr. Pressler stated this property will receive +1 point for any parcel of land, 
which adjoins State Games Lands, and/or State Forest Lands, +2 points for any parcel of land 
that would provide significant public access availability and benefits (i.e. nature trails, bike 
paths, primative campsites).  Mr. Pressler stated he considers Mr. Browns property to be open 
to the public.  Mr. Browns stated he has never denied anyone access except during doe 
season.  Mr. Pisoni questioned whether it was technically open to the public.  There was 
discussion on this matter.  Mr. Pressler stated the Brown property would also receive +2 points 
for any parcel of land of which more than 25% of the surface area was farmed for the previous 
five years.  Mr. Pressler stated this property has class I & II soils, three wells and forest.  Mr. 
Pressler commented that this property adjoins the state game lands on three sides and 
questioned the right of way.  Mr. Brown stated there is a farm land right of way and a 50 foot 
right of way he acquired from the State Game Lands Commission when they purchased some 
property from him.  Mr. Brown stated he has not totally decided whether he is going to submit 
all his acreage in the Open Space Program.  Mr. Brown stated there are 444.60 acres on his 



property.   Mr. Brown reviewed the survey map and right of way with the Board.   Mr. Brown 
stated the survey map shows 313 acres in Halfmoon Township and he is in negotiations to 
subdivide.  Mr. Brown stated he may keep some property out of the program for his 
grandchildren.  There was more discussion on whether Mr. Brown’s property is accessible to 
the public.  Mr. Brown explained the original warrants for this property.  Mr. Pressler 
questioned whether Mr. Brown was going to enter 278 acres into the Open Space Preservation 
program.  Mr. Brown stated for now that is what he is submitting.  Mr. Pressler will revise this 
land rating and forward.       
   
C. RT VENTURES 
Mr. Pressler stated there is 106 acres but only 66 acres is going to be considered for the open 
space program.  This property scores 4.9 points for being over 50 acres to 100 acres in size.  
Mr. Pressler stated this property gets +2 point for any parcel of land of which more than 25% of 
the surface area was farmed for the previous five years.  There was discussion on whether this 
property has 25% steep slops and/or hydric soils at the top of the property.  There was 
discussion whether there were wetlands on this property.  Mr. Pressler stated there are class I 
& II soils according to the map.  Mr. Hoover stated there is a season stream.  Mr. Pressler 
stated there is a right of way clarification needed.  There was discussion on the right-of-way 
that was approved by conditional use.  Mr. Pressler stated the engineer should come up with 
the specifications for that property regarding the right of way.  There was discussion on the 
four acres in between this property and the wildlife corridor.   Mr. Eberhart stated Mr. Love met 
with Mr. Hilshey and other parties to discuss what is happening with this four acres and 
restrictions.   Mr. Eberhart stated the Clearwater Conservancy wants to make sure the wildlife 
corridor.  Mr. Pressler stated he has concerns that the Open Space Preservation Board does 
not know the amounts of the appraisals, any restrictions or what is going on with this purchase 
and a deed needs to be provided.  The other board members also expressed their concerns 
also that the Open Space Preservation Board should know what is happening with this 
property, appraisal amounts and restrictions before the Board of Supervisors provides any 
monies to this project.  Mr. Pisoni stated he would try to get information and let the Board of 
Supervisors the feelings of the Open Space Preservation Board.     

 
D. DENNIS & JOAN THOMSON 
Mr. Pressler stated this property has 600 deeded acres and 600 acres and being considered 
for the 99 year lease program.  This property scores 16 points for being over 300 acres and +1 
point for any parcel of land which adjoins another parcel of land, preserved in the OSPP of 
Halfmoon Township or other land preservation program acceptable to the OSPB, +2 for 
adjoining an arterial street, +2 for 25% being farmed for previous five years and -1 for 25% 
steep slopes and/or hydric soils.  Mr. Way questioned whether Mr. Thomson was consolidating 
this property and submitting it as a whole.  Mr. Thomson is working on consolidating them now.  
Mr. Pressler stated there needs to be one deed submitted.  Mr. Hoover stated he thought Mr. 
Thomson was close to having the consolidation completed.  Mr. Pressler stated it may receive 
special points for being class I & II soils, wetlands, forest and numerous wells.  There was 
discussion whether Mr. Thomson requested an advance payment.  Mr. Hoover will work on 
completing this land rating for this property.       
 
The land ratings will be reviewed again at the next meeting for approval.   
 

6. 5 YR. REVIEW ORDINANCE 
Mr. Eberhart provided an updated copy of the Ordinance amending the 5 year review process.  
Mr. Pressler stated the Open Space Preservation Board should provide the review committee 
with the information necessary to conduct the comprehensive review and table of information 
that provides the yearly operation about the program and not the program administrator.  Mr. 



Hoover suggested Mr. Love provide a yearly progress table so the Open Space Preservation 
Board has updated information.  Mr. Eberhart stated the table should be included as part of the 
minutes.  Mr. Pressler stated this table could not be done until around February when the 
reviews will be completed for the previous year.  Mr. Eberhart suggested the table be also sent 
to the Board of Supervisors for their review and minutes.  Mr. Eberhart suggested Mr. Love 
use the table Mr. Pressler has completed as a base to use for future tables.  Mr. Eberhart will 
provide an updated Ordinance at the next meeting for approval by vote.   
     

7. MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 5TH, 2008 
 

●  MOTION:  Mr. Pisoni moved to approve the minutes of November 5th, 2008; Mr. 
Eberhart seconded; Vote 6-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
8. RVD ORDINANCE  

Mr. Eberhart stated the Open Space Preservation Board should recommend a figure for the 
fee in lieu amount for the fee-in-lieu method section in the RVD Ordinance.  This section refers 
to the amount the fee will be per additional dwelling unit.  Mr. Eberhart stated the Planning 
Commission discussed recommending $5,000.00.  There was discussion on whether this fee 
was set too low.  Mr. Brown commented the fee should be more like $14,000.  Mr. Way stated 
if the fee is set too high then the developer will not use this option.  Mr. Brown stated he did not 
like that this method and it will put the burden on the Open Space Preservation Board to find 
the open space and what is preventing the developer from doing this type of development in 
another part of the township.   Mr. Eberhart stated this Ordinance is specifically for the 
Maloney & Grays Woods developments.  Mr. Pisoini stated it should not matter who acquires 
the open space along as it is acquired.   Mr. Pisoini explained the monies that come in from 
this Ordinance will go directly to the open space preservation fund and could be used for 
permanent development easement buyouts.  Mr. Eberhart suggested the Open Space 
Preservation Board could wait until an appraisal amount is given for the wildlife corridor and 
use that amount as a base to start from. 
  

9. PALTA GOVERNMENT LEADERSHIP AWARD 
Ms. Shuey from Clearwater Conservancy forwarded an email to Mr. Eberhart stating she had 
heard that the only thing that held Halfmoon Township back in the past was the lease of 
development rights.  Mr. Eberhart stated since the Ordinance has been passed regarding 
purchasing development rights the township should resubmit and application and offered to 
draft the PALTA municipal award application on behalf of the Open Space Preservation Board. 
 
●  MOTION:  Mr. Pisoni moved to allow Mr. Eberhart to draft the PALTA municipal award 

application on behalf of the Open Space Preservation Board; Mr. Brown seconded; 
Vote 6-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
10. CITIZENS COMMENTS 

There were no citizen comments. 
 

11. OTHER BUSINESS 
There was no other business before the board.   
  
Adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  
  

      Respectfully Submitted, 
 


